
Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board 
Wednesday March 18, 2015; 3:00 pm – 4:30 pm 

CVB, 904 East Shore Drive, Ithaca 
 
 
AGENDA                    Start Time   
1) February STPB Meeting Minutes              3:00 

 ACTION – Approve Meeting Minutes 
2) Privilege of the Floor                3:05     

 Limit of 3 minutes per person for members of the public to address the board   
3) STPB Elevator Speech – Sue Perlgut              3:10   
4) Staff REPORT – Tom Knipe                3:25     
5) Spring 2015 Tourism Grants – Tom Knipe and Steve Hugo        3:30 

 ACTION – Recommend Tourism Marketing and Advertising Grant awards 

 ACTION – Recommend New Tourism Initiative Grant awards 

 ACTION – Recommend Tourism Project Grant Awards 
6) Spring 2015 Community Celebrations Grants – Sue Perlgut        3:55 

 ACTION – Recommend Community Celebrations Grant Awards     
7) 2015 STPB Goals – Sue Perlgut, Ken Jupiter            4:10 

 ACTION – Adopt 2015 goals 
8) Announcements (time permitting)                   
 
Agenda Packet 

1. February 2015 draft STPB meeting minutes 
2. List of Spring 2015 Tourism Grants applications (recommendations to be sent separately) 
3. List of Spring 2015 Community Celebrations Grant applications and award recommendations 
4. Recommended 2015 STPB Goals 

 
Next Meeting 
Wednesday, April 15th  
 
 
 
 
 

MISSION: The Strategic Tourism Planning Board is charged by the 
Tompkins County Legislature with providing oversight and strategic 
direction for tourism initiatives that promote economic development and 
enhance the quality of life in Tompkins County. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
Meeting Minutes Draft – February 2015 

Page 1  

Date:  February 18, 2015  1 
Time:  3:00-5:00pm 2 
Location:          CVB 3 
 4 
Attendees: 5 

Name Representation 

Christy Agnese  Ithaca College 

Sue Perlgut  Arts-Culture 

Josh Friedman  Arts-Culture 

John Spence  CAP, Non-Voting 

Bruce Stoff  CVB, Non-Voting 

Dwight Mengel  Transportation, Non-Voting 

Gary Ferguson  DIA, Non-Voting 

Jennifer Tavares Chamber, Non-Voting 

Martha Armstrong E TCAD, Non-Voting 

Will Burbank TC Legislature, Non-Voting 

Beverly Baker A Associate Member 

Carol Kammen A Associate Member 

Jon Reis A Associate Member 

Tom Knipe Staff 

Jennifer Turner  Staff 
 7 

 8 
 9 
Also in attendance: Sarah Imes, Kristy Mitchell, Mary Rachun, Katherine Banko, and Jodi LaPierre (Ithaca 10 
Convention and Visitors Bureau), Ronda Roaring 11 
 12 
Meeting Agenda 13 
1) January STPB Meeting Minutes  14 

 Action – Approve Meeting Minutes 15 
2) Privilege of the Floor 16 
3) Chair’s REPORT – Sue Perlgut 17 
4) Staff Report – Tom Knipe 18 
5) 2015 STPB Goals - Discussion 19 
6) CVB Annual Report – Bruce Stoff 20 
7) CVB 2015 Work Plan Presentation – Bruce Stoff 21 
8) Arts & Culture Organizational Development Grant 2015 awards 22 

 ACTION – Recommend 2015 awards 23 
9) Strategic Tourism Implementation funding – Ken Jupiter, Tom Knipe (P&E Report) 24 

 ACTION – Approve recommended 2015 allocation process 25 
10) Ag & Culinary Task Force Presentation – Tom Knipe 26 
 27 
The meeting was called to order at 3:01 PM. 28 
 29 
January 2015 STPB meeting minutes were approved with a friendly amendment. 30 
 31 
Chair’s Report – Sue Perlgut noted her gratitude for the fantastic work being done by committees. She 32 
went on to report that Stuart Stein’s memorial service will be Sunday May 3rd at the Statler Hotel at 2:30 33 
p.m. 34 
 35 
Staff Report – Tom Knipe reported on the Tompkins County Planning Department’s Work Plan for 2015-36 
2016. He described his role and noted top level goals in implementing the 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan and 37 
supporting the STPB in providing oversight and strategic direction for the county tourism program and room 38 
tax. Areas of work include the direct management of five grant programs and contract administration for 39 
other funded programs. Direct work on implementing the Strategic Tourism Plan includes the Cayuga Lake 40 

Name Representation 

Anne Kellerman EAt-Large 

Ian Golden Recreation 

Ethan Ash A Arts-Culture 

John Gutenberger  Cornell 

Lynnette Scofield  Lodging 

Kelli Cartmill  Lodging 

Rita Rosenberg  Agriculture 

David Blake   At-Large 

Andy Zepp  At-Large 

Stephen Nunley  At-Large 

Steve Hugo At-Large 

Ken Jupiter  At-Large 

Mike Mellor At-Large 

Anne Gossen At-Large 

Sue Stafford  TC3 



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
Meeting Minutes Draft – February 2015 

Page 2  

Blueway Trail, Priority Trails Strategy and support for the Wayfinding Plan and Beautification Plan. Tom 41 
noted the joy he finds in the variety of work and is looking forward to the various upcoming tourism 42 
initiatives including the Agri-culinary Tourism Strategy and Heritage Tourism Strategy. He also reported that 43 
2014 room tax revenues were over the budgeted amount by .015%, or $4,000. 44 
 45 
Discussion of STPB Goals – Sue Perlgut reported on the goals that were presented to the members of 46 
the STPB that included possible action-oriented and policy-driven goals as well as goals that were removed 47 
from the list of possible 2015 goals. Action oriented goals to convene a higher education tourism working 48 
group and creating a communication plan in order to familiarize people with the board were noted as 49 
personal goals of Sue Perlgut. Members discussed capacity and recommended prioritizing. Tom Knipe 50 
made the motion to adopt the recommended 2015 goals to then revisit the list for possible inclusion of 51 
possible goals at a later date. Sue Stafford seconded the motion. Creating a definitive timeline was 52 
suggested for all the goals prior to the adoption. Tom Knipe withdrew his motion to adopt the recommended 53 
goals to a later date. A timeline for all goals will be made available at the next meeting. 54 
 55 
CVB Annual Report – Bruce Stoff reported on the Key West PR campaign that his staff created to create 56 
buzz in Tompkins County. A borrowed travel site in Key West was used to poke fun at Ithaca’s weather by 57 
telling tourist to go to Key West instead. The ad campaign drew 124,835 web hits, over 183 news stories 58 
and 92,224 Facebook impressions.  59 
 60 
Bruce went on to report that 2014 had a record year of 356,000 room nights and $166,000 in revenue 61 
generated from online chats including 8,628 overnight stays booked by the CVB. Bruce went on to note the 62 
CVB’s support of the Strategic Tourism Plan and presented a model and diagram that directly relates to the 63 
evaluation program currently being worked on. 64 
 65 
Kristy Mitchell reported that web traffic at visitithaca.com was up 29% in 2014. Over 50,000 web hits and 66 
2,600,000 page views were noted as being directly connected to the digital marketing campaign. The work 67 
plan for the year will include more focus on the visitithaca.com website and will include a redesign for 68 
mobile first to include the integration of IthacaEvents.com. The mid-week marketing campaign is now 69 
running and will be moving forward into 2015. This campaign focuses on tracking exact room nights through 70 
tracking codes provided by hotels in the area. Pay per click campaigns will promote Ithaca as a whole and 71 
include marketing related to gardening and bird watching. Email marketing, contests, and trade shows were 72 
also mentioned as marketing strategies moving forward. The re-opening of the Commons will be a top 73 
priority between the CVB and Downtown Ithaca Alliance. Smaller sized travel guides have been introduced 74 
and were noted to have worked well. 75 
 76 
Introduction: Katherine Banko was introduced as the newest addition to the marketing department at the 77 
CVB.  78 
 79 
Group Sales – Mary Rachun reported that the mission of the group sales department at CVB is to book 80 
hotel rooms during the week. With the limit of conference space in the area, the motor coach market has 81 
become a main focus. Last year, their group has attended eight American Bus Association shows and plan 82 
to attend eight this year. Last year their department had meetings with over 100 tour operators and hoping 83 
to exceed that number this year. This year their department will reach out to local businesses as well as 84 
both Cornell University and Ithaca College about the Commons, Coltivare, as well as new and planned 85 
hotels. Dates have been set for three FAM tours (Motor Coach Familiarization tours). Their group also plans 86 
to attend the North American Journeys appointment based show in New York City. This initiative will aim to 87 
harbor interest in tours to Chinese professionals. 88 
 89 
Arts & Culture Organizational Development Grants – John Spence opened his report by providing 90 
background on the application process. He noted that a portion of room tax supports the Arts & Culture 91 
Organizational Development grants. Each organization has been has been required to provide a year-end 92 
report and summary of the application. The current contracts were funded from 2013 through 2015. The 93 
eligibility for funding requires that the organizations are not for profit, have professional staff, and maintain a 94 
space.  95 
 96 



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
Meeting Minutes Draft – February 2015 

Page 3  

All seven organizations met their required eligibility and were making progress towards their stated 97 
objectives. An adjustment to the budget was proposed at $7,654, using funds left over from 2014 in order to 98 
fully fund each organization. The panel recommends each organization be funded at their contracted 99 
amounts. In 2016, each organization will be required to re-apply. John Spence made the motion to 100 
recommend the budget adjustment and full funding for all seven organizations, seconded by Ian Golden. 101 
Members discussed reassessing investments moving forward. Questions centered on the return on 102 
investment and whether funding for this program was intended as annual operating support. Vote on 103 
motion: Yes 12; No 0 Recusals; 2 (Josh Friedman, Steven Nunley). 104 
 105 
Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding - Tom Knipe reported on the two-step process for Tourism 106 
Implementation funding. The process would require prospective applicants to submit a letter of interest that 107 
would then be reviewed for eligibility prior to inviting applicants to submit a full proposal. Identification of the 108 
specific timeline and the amount of funding needed for a re-do of the “Chmura study” are still under 109 
consideration. The intent is to use a portion of the 2015 Strategic Tourism Implementation funding to 110 
support a redo of the “Chmura study”, with the balance to be made available through Strategic Tourism 111 
Implementation Grants. Tom Knipe’s report constituted a motion recommending the process described in 112 
the draft Strategic Tourism Implementation Grant guidelines which were available in the agenda. Vote on 113 
motion: Yes 14; No 0 114 
 115 
Ag & Culinary Task Force Presentation – Tom Knipe gave a presentation about the Agri-culinary tourism 116 
planning effort. He spoke to assets located in Tompkins County including farm, food, and beverage. He 117 
went on to note some of the area’s strengths and weaknesses. He described the process by which 30 118 
possible actions had been narrowed down from a list of over 300. A survey will go out to all members which 119 
will be used to help prioritize the possible actions. Members discussed the difficulty in prioritizing the 120 
initiatives and suggested focusing on defining the product and target audience. Discussions centered on 121 
delineating agricultural economic development initiatives from tourism product development and tourism 122 
marketing and promotion. Suggestions to engage other community partners that work with agricultural 123 
economic development were made.    124 
 125 
Announcements – Rita Rosenberg announced that Coltivare will be hosting an event on March 9th.  The 126 
event aims to bring restaurant owners, farmers, and chefs together to discuss their needs and coordinate 127 
their efforts.  128 
 129 
With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 5:09pm. 130 
 131 
Respectfully Submitted, 132 
Jennifer Turner, Administrative Assistant 133 
Tompkins County Planning Department 134 
 135 
Next Meeting Scheduled 136 
Wednesday March 18, 2014 137 



Spring 2015 Tourism Grant Applications SUMMARY

Applicant Organization Project Title

TMA 

Request

NTI 

Request

TPG 

Request

Total 

Request
Cayuga Lake Floating Classroom ‐ 

Center for Transformative Action
2015 Exploring Edu‐tourism on Cayuga Lake $0 $1,800 $0 $1,800

Town of Ulysses Tompkins County Trail Users Information Website $0 $14,500 $0 $14,500

Finger Lakes Land Trust
2015 Gofingerlakes.org: Connecting Finger Lakes 

Visitors to Outdoor Recreation Opportunities
$2,000 $15,000 $0 $17,000

Ithaca Shakespeare Company Inc 2015 Macbeth at the Hangar Theatre $1,000 $15,000 $0 $16,000

Ithaca Underground
2015‐2016 Ithaca Underground Events: Big Day In, 

Naked Noise and November Music Series (NMS)
$2,500 $13,285 $0 $15,785

The Ithacash Corp 2015 Ithacash Tourism Retention Initiative $1,200 $5,600 $0 $6,800

NY farms! Campaign Inc DBA 

Finger Lakes Culinary Bounty
2015 Cider Week $5,000 $4,000 $0 $9,000

Cayuga Lake Watershed Network 2015 Cayuga Lake SUP Cup $1,168 $3,800 $0 $4,968

Cayuga Wine Trail, Inc.
Cayuga Lake Wine Trail's 22nd Annual Holiday 

Shopping Spree
$5,000 $0 $0 $5,000

Downtown Ithaca Alliance 2016 A Bite of Ithaca $2,500 $0 $0 $2,500

Downtown Ithaca Alliance 2015 Commons Reopening Festivities $5,000 $0 $0 $5,000

Center for the Arts at Ithaca 

(Hangar Theatre)
2015 Come for the Gorges, Stay for a Show $5,000 $0 $0 $5,000

Ithaca Farmers Market [2015] [Ithaca Farmers Market Billboard Project] $2,500 $0 $0 $2,500

Kitchen Theatre Company
2015 Cable Television Ad Campaign for Kitchen 

Theatre Company
$5,000 $0 $0 $5,000

Wharton Studio Museum 2015 Ithaca International Fantastic Film Festival $2,600 $0 $25,000 $28,200

Ithaca Shakespeare Company Inc 2015 Summer Shakespeare Festival $1,000 $0 $15,500 $16,500

Downtown Ithaca Alliance 2015 Winter Fest $2,500 $0 $15,000 $17,500

The History Center in Tompkins 

County
2015 Ithaca Celtic Festival $1,500 $0 $7,000 $8,500

Community Arts Partnership of 

Tompkins County
2015 Spring Writes Literary Festival $3,710 $0 $3,500 $7,210

Paleontological Research 

Institution
2015‐17 CNC Layers of Life $2,527 $0 $3,473 $6,000

Paleontological Research 

Institution
2015 MOTE Ancient Microworlds $2,325 $0 $1,700 $4,025

Cayuga Lake Watershed Network 2015 CanYou Canoe Cayuga? $0 $0 $2,250 $2,250

Sciencenter
2015 Early Childhood Curiosity Corner Indoor 

Expansion
$0 $0 $25,000 $25,000

Center for the Arts at Ithaca 

(Hangar Theatre)
Winter Village Bluegrass & Beyond 2016 $0 $0 $18,000 $18,000

Requests
TMA NTI TPG

Total Requested/Recommended $54,030 $72,985 $116,423

Total 2015 Funds Available 48,000 75,300 78,300

Difference* ($6,030) $2,315 ($38,123)

*the balance of funds not awarded in the Spring 2015 Grant Round to be made available in a Fall 2015 Grant Round

By tknipe@tompkins-co.org, 2/27/2015



Spring 2015 Community Celebrations Grant APPLICATIONS

Municipality Organizers Celebration
Projected 
Attendance

Request
Award 
Rec.

City of Ithaca Greater Ithaca Activities Center 2015 GIAC Festival 600 $2,000 $1,500

City of Ithaca
Latino Civic Association of 
Tompkins County

2015 Latino Heritage Month 500 $2,000 $1,500

City of Ithaca GreenStar Community Projects 5th Annual Food Justice Fair! 1000 $1,900 $1,000

Town of Groton Town of Groton
7th Annual Verne Morton Memorial 
Photography Show & Contest

300 $730 $730

Town of Danby
Danby Fun Day Committee (Danby 
Volunteer Fire Company)

Danby Fun Day 2015 1000 $2,000 $1,600

Town of Dryden Town of Dryden
Dryden Area Intergenerational 
Band and Chorus 20th Anniversary

500 $2,000 $1,000

Town of Dryden Dryden Lake Festival Dryden Lake Festival 5000 $2,000 $1,800

Town of Enfield Enfield Community Council, Inc. Enfield Harvest Festival 650 $2,000 $1,600

City of Ithaca Multicultural Resource Center First Peoples' Festival 2000 $1,000 $1,000

City of Ithaca
First Unitarian Society of Ithaca 
Sesquicentennial Committee

First Unitarian Sesquicentennial 
Street Fair

700 $1,000 $700

City of Ithaca
Tompkins County Public Library 
Foundation

Get-Up State Again 1300 $1,975 $1,000

Village of 
Groton

The Groton Old Home Day 
Committee

Groton Old Home Days 10000 $1,000 $1,000

City of Ithaca Ithaca Children's Garden International Mud Day 500 $1,900 $1,500

City of Ithaca Southside Community Center Juneteenth 300 $1,200 $1,000

Village of 
Trumansburg

Village of Trumansburg Lloyd Dorsey Commemoration 100 $1,500 $700

Town of 
Lansing

Cornell Lab of Ornithology Migration Celebration 1500 $2,000 $1,000

Town of 
Newfield

Newfield Old Home Days 
Committee

Newfield Old Home Days 1400 $2,000 $1,600

City of Ithaca
Bike Walk Tompkins, a project of 
Center for Transformative Action

Streets Alive! Ithaca 2015 3000 $2,000 $1,000

City of Ithaca
Tompkins County Veterans Day 
Committee

Veterans Day Parade/Ceremony 450 $1,500 $1,500

Village of 
Cayuga Heights

Village of Cayuga Heights - 
Historian

Village of Cayuga Heights 
Centennial Celebration - Exhibits

500 $1,725 $1,000

Village of 
Trumansburg

Trumansburg Area Chamber of 
Commerce

Winterfest 2015 1400 $2,000 $1,600

$35,430 $25,330

$32,548 $32,548

($2,882) $7,218

Total Requests/Awards

Total Available

Difference (for Fall Grant Round)

Tompkins County Tourism Program
Prepared by tknipe@tompkins-co.org



Spring 2015 Community Celebrations Grant APPLICATIONS and RECOMMENDATIONS
Detailed

Page 1 of 3 

Municipality Organizers Celebration
Projected 

Attendance
Description Date(s) Request

Award 

Rec.
Committee Comments

City of Ithaca

Greater Ithaca 

Activities 

Center

2015 GIAC 

Festival
600

This is a one‐day street festival hosted by GIAC that provides a multicultural, educational, and recreational opportunity 

focused on promoting positive social interactions, community connections, and on improving the quality of life for the people 

living in our city. It's primary objective is to celebrate the culture of family and community unity‐‐bridging the gap between 

neighborhoods, residents, and services.

6/13/2015 $2,000  $1,500

GIAC is an important community center. 
Encourage improved methods of 
counting attendance.

City of Ithaca

Latino Civic 

Association of 

Tompkins 

County

2015 Latino 

Heritage 

Month

500

The Latino Heritage Month Celebration consists of a series of events that seek to highlight the contributions of Latino/a 

culture in the United States. Cultural, social, educational and artistic events will be held at different venues in the City of 

Ithaca. In the past events have included art exhibits, music concerts, dance concerts, dance performances, theatre, book 

readings, food demonstrations and, for the first time last year, a film festival. We event published a Tompkins County Latino 

Community Cookbook as part of these celebrations. We pride ourselves on presenting and displaying our local musical, dance 

and other artistic talents. Local artists, chefs and musicians will be asked to participate in our events. 

09/15/2015‐

10/15/2015
$2,000  $1,500

Important ethnic celebration. Month‐
long celebration allows multiple 
opportunities to celebrate latino culture.

City of Ithaca

GreenStar 

Community 

Projects

5th Annual 

Food Justice 

Fair!

1000

2015 will mark our 5th Annual Food Justice Fair! We will celebrate the steps taken by our community towards building a local‐

to‐regional food system ‐ one where all people in Tompkins County can access healthy, affordable food, sustainably grown, 

every day. The Fair highlights the unique agricultural and cultural identities of the people in Tompkins County. We offer 

information and connections to food justice, motivational speakers, dialogue with community panelists, in addition to staple 

fair activities that include local music, the Seed‐to‐Table Junior Cooking Demonstration, the Veggie Boogaloo, Chicken petting 

in the hay bale coop, food grown by our local farmers, and affordable local food options from area vendors.

09/20/2015 $1,900  $1,000 Fits with agriculinary tourism theme. 

Town of 

Groton
Town of Groton

7th Annual 

Verne Morton 

Memorial 

Photography 

Show & 

Contest

300

The Town of Groton will sponsor the 7th Annual Verne Morton Memorial Photography Show & Contest during Groton Olde 

Home Days on Friday, August 14, 2015 from 6pm ‐ 9pm and Saturday, August 15, 2015 from 10am to 5pm at the Groton Town 

Hall located at 101 Conger Boulevard, Groton, NY.

08/14/2015‐

8/15/2015
$730  $730

Nice display. Wide community appeal. 
Strong historical component.

Town of 

Danby

Danby Fun Day 

Committee 

(Danby 

Volunteer Fire 

Company)

Danby Fun 

Day 2015
1000

Fun Day is the event of the year in Danby. Residents and visitors from surrounding towns gather at the Danby firehouse for 

exhibits of local history, live music by local groups, a parade, barbecue, games, prizes, and exhibits by local and non‐local 

crafters.

07/11/2015 $2,000  $1,600
Traditional community celebration. 
Strong attendance.

Town of 

Dryden
Town of Dryden

Dryden Area 

Intergeneratio

nal Band and 

Chorus 20th 

Anniversary

500

The Dryden Area Intergenerational Band and Chorus is an all inclusive group with no fees or auditions and open to any age 

person. It is an all volunteer group with three paid artistic personnel.  It meets for 6 weeks each summer with a two hour 

rehearsal for each group weekly and concludes with one or two free public concerts. This year, our 20th year, we are 

celebrating the anniversary by commissioning a local composer to write a piece for the combined group to be premiered at 

the August 9 Dryden concert. The group is sponsored by the Town of Dryden.

06/29/2015‐

8/9/2015
$2,000  $1,000

One‐time request to support 
commissioned composition for the 20th 
anniversary.

Town of 

Dryden

Dryden Lake 

Festival

Dryden Lake 

Festival
5000

A community festival that celebrates Dryden Lake Park's unique setting, history, recreational opportunities, as well as that of 

the surrounding area (Town of Dryden) by providing local entertainment, vendors and artisans; family‐oriented activities and 

education presented by local businesses, historical and environmental groups.

07/25/2015 $2,000  $1,800
Strong attendance and important to 
Dryden community. Reconfigured event.

Town of 

Enfield

Enfield 

Community 

Council, Inc.

Enfield 

Harvest 

Festival

650

The Enfield Harvest Festival is an annual daylong community celebration. This event features a chicken barbecue, silent 

auction with many items donated by local businesses, book fair, children's games, vendors, FYI booths, quilt raffle, music and 

a ping‐pong ball drop from an airplane flown by a local pilot.

10/10/2015 $2,000  $1,600

Important traditional community 
celebration in a community without a 
strong center. The only community 
celebration in Enfield. 

Prepared 3/13/2015 by tknipe@tompkins-co.org



Spring 2015 Community Celebrations Grant APPLICATIONS and RECOMMENDATIONS
Detailed

Page 2 of 3 

Municipality Organizers Celebration
Projected 

Attendance
Description Date(s) Request

Award 

Rec.
Committee Comments

City of Ithaca

Multicultural 

Resource 

Center

First Peoples' 

Festival
2000

The First Peoples Festival is a celebration of Indigenous peoples of New York State with traditional music, crafts, displays and 

foods. We provide an educational opportunity for the public to learn more about the traditions and unlearn the stereotypes 

connected with Indigenous cultures. The First Peoples Festival is located in downtown Ithaca.

10/03/2015 $1,000  $1,000 Important cultural celebration.

City of Ithaca

First Unitarian 

Society of 

Ithaca 

Sesquicentenni

al Committee

First Unitarian 

Sesquicentenn

ial Street Fair

700

The First Unitarian Society of Ithaca, NY is excited to be celebrating its sesquicentennial anniversary in 2015.  We have a rich 

history with connections to the Ithaca and Tompkins County community.  Our early years are intimately connected to Cornell 

University's founders. Our celebration has multiple dimensions but one key event will happen on Sunday, September 13, 2015 

as a special tribute to our annual Sundae Sunday celebration. It so happens that this will be the day of Fall Creek's annual 

Porchfest. Our event will be from noon to 2:30 and will include the following:  ice cream sundaes (using Purity ice cream), 

games for youth highlighting outdoor games from 1865, 1915, 1965 and 2015, and honoring the community agencies that we 

have had the good fortune of working with and supporting.

09/13/2015 $1,000  $700

Award contingent on positive 
determination of eligibility by the County 
Attorney. The program needs policy 
guidance regarding eligibility of faith 
congregations.

City of Ithaca

Tompkins 

County Public 

Library 

Foundation

Get‐Up State 

Again
1300

Tompkins County Public Library is hosting Get‐Up State Again, an exploration of hip hop history and culture, following the 

success of our 2013 project The Hip Hop Experience. As a public library, our primary goal is to facilitate access to expertly 

presented information so attendees can become thoughtful participants in our community by promoting critical inquiry, 

cultural understanding, and civic engagement. A celebration of hip hop ‐ through experience and conversation ‐ allows us to 

explore issues of art, history, culture and diversity.

09/25/2015‐

9/28/2015
$1,975  $1,000

Unique project to celebration hip‐hop 
culture.  

Village of 

Groton

The Groton Old 

Home Day 

Committee

Groton Old 

Home Days
10000 This is an annual celebration to bring the Groton Community Members together and to celebrate our history.

08/14/2015‐

8/16/2015
$1,000  $1,000

Traditional community celebration. 
Strong attendance.

City of Ithaca

Ithaca 

Children's 

Garden

International 

Mud Day
500

International Mud Day is a family‐fun celebration of play, art, community, and getting muddy. Children and families are 

invited to join in a variety of mud‐related fun activities at the Hands‐on‐Nature "Anarchy Zone" at the Ithaca Children's 

Garden. Following in the successful muddy footsteps of our first three International Mud Days, we will be offering folks 

opportunities to make mud cloth paintings, mud pies in a "mud kitchen" and do mud experiments in a "mud lab." Many but 

not all Mud Day goers take it to the ultimate wild level: ?full immersion? in mud baths, mud pits, and mud slides. The Ithaca 

Fire Department kicks off the event by hosing down the piles of top soil.

06/27/2015 $1,900  $1,500 Popular, unique event.

City of Ithaca

Southside 

Community 

Center

Juneteenth 300

Juneteenth is the oldest known celebration commemorating the ending of slavery in the United States. Juneteenth 

commemorates African American freedom and emphasizes achievement, education and community. Our Juneteenth 

celebration will educate about Juneteenth and Afro‐centric arts and history; provide relevant entertainment and 

informational services for Tompkins County's African and under‐served communities; and provide an event that celebrates 

community encourages community engagement through art.

06/20/2015 $1,200  $1,000

Good incorporation of history. The 
committee recommends seeking 
assistance from the Festivals Program to 
boost event promotion and attendance.

Village of 

Trumansburg

Village of 

Trumansburg

Lloyd Dorsey 

Commemorati

on

100

On Saturday, May 16th, 2015, the Village of Trumansburg will be commemorating Lloyd Dorsey, and ex‐slave who escaped 

from Maryland and made his way to Trumansburg around 1843 where he settled, buying land and raising a family. We will be 

unveiling a historical marker at the location of his past residence, as well as a street sign renaming this location as Dorsey Hill.

05/16/2015 $1,500  $700
Low attendance, but strong historical 
elements. One time event.

Town of 

Lansing

Cornell Lab of 

Ornithology

Migration 

Celebration
1500

The proposed project, Migration Celebration, offers visitors from Tompkins County and beyond a chance to celebrate the 

migratory birds of Sapsucker Woods and green spaces throughout the region. As the largest one‐day public event at the world‐

renowned Cornell Lab of Ornithology (www.birds.cornell.edu), Migration Celebration offers more than 1,000 visitors a hands‐

on look at our diverse research, conservation, and outreach projects. Through displays and activities, visitors learn about birds 

and connect with the natural world all in a fun, festival atmosphere. We will highlight the importance and diversity of habitats 

in the Tompkins County region. In addition, we will be celebrating the 100th anniversary of the founding of the Cornell Lab of 

Ornithology, so this year our festival will include an expanded Open House of Lab projects and facilities, including behind‐the‐

scenes tours not available at other times.

09/12/2015 $2,000  $1,000
Lansing community event. Access to 
youth from the City of Ithaca. 

Prepared 3/13/2015 by tknipe@tompkins-co.org



Spring 2015 Community Celebrations Grant APPLICATIONS and RECOMMENDATIONS
Detailed

Page 3 of 3 

Municipality Organizers Celebration
Projected 

Attendance
Description Date(s) Request

Award 

Rec.
Committee Comments

Town of 

Newfield

Newfield Old 

Home Days 

Committee

Newfield Old 

Home Days
1400

The Newfield Old Home Days (OHD) celebration is Newfield's largest event of the year and brings the entire community 

together to enjoy a parade, local entertainment, local craft and food vendors, and more. Free and open to the public, OHD is 

organized by community members and centers around a new theme every year that is based on an aspect of Newfield's 

history and includes a free souvenir booklet with articles and photos.  The event also represents the biggest fund raising 

opportunity for many local organizations and school classes.

07/24/2015‐

07/25/2015
$2,000  $1,600 Traditional celebration. 

City of Ithaca

Bike Walk 

Tompkins, a 

project of 

Center for 

Transformative 

Action

Streets Alive! 

Ithaca 2015
3000

This will be the fourth year of Streets Alive! Ithaca. Streets Alive! is an active transportation event that encourages people to 

walk, bike and roll and to learn in a safe and supportive setting how easy and effective this is as a way to get around in their 

city. The previous Streets Alive! events featured to activities to educate and encourage youth and adult audiences to use 

active transportation.

05/03/2015 

& 9/20/2015
$2,000  $1,000

Good matching funds. Flexibility in use of 
grant for other expenses? Gets people to 
experience communities they don’t 
necessarily visit.

City of Ithaca

Tompkins 

County 

Veterans Day 

Committee

Veterans Day 

Parade and 

Ceremony

450
The Tompkins County Veterans Day Committee requests a grant of $1,500 to help support the Veterans Day Parade and 

Veterans Day Ceremony.  Our Veterans are very important to us.
11/08/2015 $1,500  $1,500

Important annual celebration of 
veterans.

Village of 

Cayuga 

Heights

Village of 

Cayuga Heights ‐

Historian

Village of 

Cayuga 

Heights 

Centennial 

Celebration ‐ 

Exhibits

500

The Cayuga Heights Centennial Celebration is intended to build community engagement through educational and entertaining 

programming about the history of the Village and its place in the Town of Ithaca and surrounding area. Two exhibits are 

planned to be on display in Marcham Hall, the Village's historically significant municipal building at 836 Hanshaw Road. The 

opening of the exhibits is slated to coincide with Historic Ithaca's annual spring house tour where Village of Cayuga Heights' 

homes will be featured on June 13th, the weekend of the centennial of the Village's founding.One exhibit, to be displayed 

primarily in the large downstairs meeting room of the building, will feature a display and description of significant events in 

the history of Cayuga Heights.  The other exhibit that will be placed in the adjoining room downstairs in Marcham Hall will be 

a display of drawings and watercolor paintings by Jack Lambert.

06/13/2015 $1,725  $1,000
Good to see an application from Cayuga 
Heights. 

Village of 

Trumansburg

Trumansburg 

Area Chamber 

of Commerce

Winterfest 

2015
1400

The first weekend in December, every year, is the Trumansburg Area Winterfest. This event is to share the start of the holiday 

season, "small town style". Highlights are a visit from Mr. and Mrs. Claus, delicious food, talented performers, lighting of the 

holiday tree, caroling, a decorating contest for area businesses, and lots of fun for the whole family.

12/05/2015 $2,000  $1,600 Traditional community celebration.

$35,430 $25,330

$32,548  $32,548

($2,882) $7,218

Total Requests/Awards

Total Available

Difference

Prepared 3/13/2015 by tknipe@tompkins-co.org



 

2015 STPB Goals 
3/12/15 Draft, tknipe@tompkins‐co.org 

Tompkins	County	Strategic	Tourism	
Planning	Board	(STPB)	Goals	

What	goals	should	the	STPB	establish	for	itself	as	a	board,	for	2015?	
 

Approved board goals for 2015 are listed first, followed by possible goals. Possible goals will be 
revisited in July and one or more may be added to the list of approved board goals for the year at 
that time. Goals are separated into Action-Oriented Goals and Policy-Driven Goals. (revised version 
3/13/15) 

2015	Action‐Oriented	Goals	
A. Complete the Agriculinary Tourism Implementation Plan by May 2015 and create a 

tangible program by the end of the year. (Lead: STPB Agriculinary Tourism Task Force) 
B. Convene a meeting facility task force and report to the board by June 2015. (Lead: STPB 

Meeting and Conference Facility Task Force) 
C. Complete program modifications and revised ACOD grant guidelines by mid-year 2015. 

(Lead: CAP, ACOD Program Review Committee) 
D. Complete the Heritage Tourism Implementation Plan by September 2015. (Lead: STPB 

Heritage Tourism Task Force) 
E. Fund and ensure appropriate scope and representation on client committee for a new 

comprehensive visitor profile study for Tompkins County. A contract with a qualified 
research firm to be in place by the end of 2015, with the study itself to begin in late 2015 
or early 2016. (Leads:  CVB, STPB P&E Committee, Study Client Committee) 

F. Develop a concerted approach to enhancing the demographic diversity of the STPB and 
associate membership, to coincide with recruitment of new STPB members which will 
take place in September 2015.(Lead: STPB Membership & Bylaws Committee) 

G. Create a communications plan for the Tompkins County Tourism Program. This will be 
done in two phases.  First, the STPB will work to develop an “elevator speech” for the 
board itself in spring 2015. Second, work to develop a communications plan for the 
Tourism Program as a whole will begin by the end of 2015, with the final 
communications plan to be completed sometime in 2016. 

RECOMMENDED	Policy‐Driven	Goals	
H. Identify a threshold of tourism program investment that triggers a more thorough review 

of an organization or project, and a framework for assessing risk for new initiatives, to 
follow up on recommendations of the Ticket Center and Wine Center reports. Timing: by 
June 2015. (Lead: P&E Committee) 



 

2015 STPB Goals 
3/12/15 Draft, tknipe@tompkins‐co.org 

I. Support the CVB as they envision what a visitor center looks like in Ithaca, NY. A Progress 
Report on the Visitor Center Tech Outreach Initiative will be delivered in January 2016. 
(Lead: CVB) 

 

The following Possible Goals will be revisited in June or July, 2015 for possible inclusion in STPB goals for the 
year.  Staff and board member capacity to achieve the board goals in 2015 will be the primary consideration 
in determining whether any of these possible goals are added to the list of approved goals.  The possible 
action-oriented goals are listed in order of priority for consideration. 

POSSIBLE	Action‐Oriented	Goals	
1. Convene a Higher Education Tourism Working Group. 
2. Monitor the program evaluation planning efforts of all programs funded by Tompkins 

County room tax using the program evaluation planning model recently used by the 
CVB. 

3. Convene an Outdoor Recreation Tourism Task Force 

POSSIBLE	Policy‐Driven	Goals	
4. Review board makeup for adequate recreation representation.  
5. Examine Arts and Culture support in other communities to understand our community’s 

support for the arts relative to other communities and our goals.  
6. Critically examine the tourism program policy around purely generating new tourism 

through our investments versus starting with the assumption that we need to build our 
tourism products with local support and investment first in order to have successful 
community-based tourism. 

7. Examine the possibilities for increasing revenues for the Tompkins County Tourism 
Program from a variety of sources 

REMOVED	from	list	of	Possible	2015	Goals	
 Conduct a detailed review of tourism program funding by sector and report on the 

level/quality of alignment of funding and priorities.  
o Reason for removal: staff-driven, ongoing. 

 Use a new “Chmura” study to analyze different sectors’ role in the tourism industry, 
including recreation.  

o Reason for removal: inherent in the study process itself; and doing the study is 
already a recommended goal.  

 Encourage each grant committee to review guidelines to ensure they align with the 2020 
Strategic Tourism Plan and are funding the most strategic projects. 

o Reason for removal: staff driven, ongoing. 



Inside VisitIthaca’s “We Surrender, Winter Wins” PR Campaign  
 
Eight years in the Making, two years in planning 
The CVB weighed lodging statistics, the local events calendar, regional weather forecasts and holiday 
news cycles before launching the campaign. It chose the Keys because the target geography led to 
millions of Northeasterners who winter in Florida and are free to visit Ithaca at other times. The 

campaign was ready for the “Polar 
Vortex” of 2014, but right 
combination of calendar and 
weather failed to materialize. The 
variables aligned this Presidents 
Weekend and the project went 
viral as hoped. 
 
Immediate Impact 
Ithaca became the number‐one 
trending topic on Facebook and a 
top‐10 trending news story 
nationally. 

 
Broadcast Media Report 
434 broadcast stories (radio and TV) to a Nielsen audience of 54.67 million, $1.67 million value for TV & 
Radio alone.  
 
Online Media Report 
Online news media and news blog posts totaled 649 stories with total readership (or impressions) of 591 
million. Ad equivalency of $2,180,739 
 
Combined Ad Equivalency (excluding print): $3.85 million 
 
Long Term Plan 
More than 150,000 visitors clicked on VisitIthaca.com, roughly 50 times the usual traffic. Those visitors 
are seeing re‐targeted follow‐up ads to encourage visitation, as are snowbirds in key Florida markets. So, 
while final impact of the campaign is yet to be determined, we do know that the return on investment 
will be positive. But that’s easy considering the total investment was only $400‐‐excluding the staff time 
to handle dozens of interviews about tourism in Ithaca, the Finger Lakes and New York state. 
 
Media Highlights 
 
ABC Good Morning America 
NBC Today 
ABC World News Tonight 
CNN 
USA Today 
NPR (Morning Edition and All things Considered) 
NY Daily News 
Huffpo 
Miami Herald 

People.com 
In Touch Magazine 
The Weather Channel AM HQ 
BBC Radio 
CTV Canada 
AP National Travel/Features Wire 
AP National News Wire (this rashed our server). 
AP Follow Up about Crashed Server 
NPR “Wait, Wait, Don’t Tell Me” 

 



 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 


	3_18_15_STPB_agenda
	2-18-15 STPB minutes draft_tkedit
	2015 Spring tourism grant applications - SUMMARY
	2015 Spring Community Celebrations Applications_SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS-short
	2015 Spring Community Celebrations Applications_SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS-detailed
	2015 STPB goals3_1

